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PER CURIAM:

Demetrius Desean Thomas entered a conditional guilty
plea to distribution of cocaine base, in violation of 21 U.S.C.
§ 841 (a) (1) (2006) , reserving his right to challenge the
district court’s denial of his motion to dismiss the indictment
for an alleged violation of his speedy trial rights under
Article TIII of the Interstate Agreement on Detainers Act
(“IADA"), 18 U.S.C. App. 2 (2006). Thomas was sentenced to
seventy months’ imprisonment. Finding no error, we affirm.

Thomas's counsel asserts on appeal that Thomas
attempted to properly invoke his right to a speedy trial under
the IADA. Counsel argues that the district court’s denial of
the motion to dismiss the indictment because of Thomas'’s
technical non-compliance with Article III renders an unjust
result.

We review “de novo the district court’s denial of a
motion to dismiss an indictment where the denial depends solely

on questions of law.” United States v. Hatcher, 560 F.3d 222,

224 (4th Cir. 2009). The TIADA provides an incarcerated
prisoner, against whom a detainer is lodged in another
jurisdiction, the right to demand trial within 180 days. 18
U.s.C. App. 2, § 2, Art. III(a). It 1is the prisoner’s
responsibility to “have caused to Dbe delivered to the

prosecuting officer and the appropriate court of the prosecuting



officer’s Jjurisdiction written notice of the place of his
imprisonment and his request for a final disposition to be made
of the indictment, information, or complaint.” Id. The 180-day
time period detailed in Article III(a) “does not commence until
the prisoner’s request for final disposition of the charges
against him has actually been delivered to the court and
prosecuting officer of the jurisdiction that lodged the detainer

against him.” Fex v. Michigan, 507 U.S. 43, 52 (1993).

Here, the federal detainer form detailed the date and
court in which the detainer was filed and the prisoner’s right
to a speedy trial. Additionally, the form advised that the
prisoner “should periodically inquire as to whether [the]
written notice of request for a final disposition of the charges
against [the prisoner] hal[d] been received by the appropriate
U.S. Attorney and the appropriate U.S. District Court.” A copy
of the form was to be retained by the prisoner and the remaining
three copies were to be sent to the U.S. Marshal’s Office, the
U.S. Attorney’s Office, and the district court.

The provision of the federal detainer form at issue

reads: “I (do) (do not) demand a speedy trial on the charge(s).”
Thomas did not make a selection. Furthermore, the form was
mailed only to the U.S. Marshal’s Office. There was no evidence

presented to show that either the U.S. Attorney’s Office or the



district court were notified of Thomas’s desire for a speedy
trial.

Counsel, however, asserts that Thomas “did everything
within his power and control to make sure that his request for a
speedy trial had been properly made.” Nevertheless, Thomas
failed to strictly comply with IADA procedures. See, e.g.,

United States wv. Henson, 945 F.2d 430, 434 (lst Cir. 1991)

(stating strict compliance with Article III 1is necessary to
place prosecuting authority on notice that 180-day provision has
been invoked) . Moreover, any alleged negligence on the part of
prison or law enforcement personnel does not excuse non-
compliance with Article III. See Fex, 507 U.S. at 49-52. Thus,
we conclude the district court did not err in denying Thomas’s
motion to dismiss the indictment.

Accordingly, we affirm the judgment of the district
court. We dispense with oral argument because the facts and
legal contentions are adequately presented in the materials

before the court and argument would not aid in the decisional

process.

AFFIRMED



